



P. 02 8335 3200

E. info@retaildrinks.org.au

PO Box 6261, Alexandria, NSW 2015 Suite W3G, Building 2, Sydney Corporate Park 75 O'Riordan Street, Alexandria, NSW 2015

RETAIL DRINKS AUSTRALIA LIMITED | ACN 108 468 248 NOTICE OF FY24 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the FY24 Annual General Meeting (**AGM**) of Members of Retail Drinks Australia Limited (**Company**) ACN 108 468 248 will be held on 13 November 2024, at Doltone House Darling Island, 48 Pirrama Road, Pyrmont NSW 2009, commencing at 11:30am (AEDT).

Register your attendance here: https://retaildrinksindustrysummit.com.au/agm-registration/ or by contacting (P) 02 8335 3200 or (E) info@retaildrinks.org.au Members in attendance will have the opportunity to vote, comment and ask questions. Members not able to attend who wish to exercise their right to vote may do so by submitting their vote to (E) info@retaildrinks.org.au, or by appointing a proxy to attend on their behalf.

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

- 1 Approval of Minutes from FY23 AGM:
 - 1.1 To receive and consider the minutes of the FY23 AGM.

Note: There is no requirement for members to approve the Minutes. However, members will be given an opportunity to ask questions and comment on the FY23 AGM Minutes.

- 2 Presentation of the FY24 Annual Reports:
 - 2.1 To receive and consider the Financial Report, Directors' Report, and Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 30 June 2024, in accordance with Section 317 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), and to provide an overview of the key activities undertaken by the Company during FY24.

Note: There is no requirement for members to approve the reports. However, members may ask questions and comment on the reports and conduct of the Audit.

- 3 Approval of Proposed Amendments to the Company's Constitution:
 - 3.1 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following special resolutions of the Company:

Note: The resolutions below were first raised and discussed by Directors in November 2023 as part of a planned five (5) year strategic and structural review of the Company. Discussions progressed at formal meetings held in February, May, and August 2024, where Directors approved all proposed amendments to be put to Members for resolution at the FY24 AGM. As these proposed amendments are considered 'reserved matter' resolutions, they must be passed by a majority of member votes in a majority of member categories.

Please refer to the enclosed Appendix for detailed information on each proposed resolution, including the relevant section/s of the <u>Company's Constitution</u>, current status, proposed changes, and rationale.







P. 02 8335 3200

E. info@retaildrinks.org.au

PO Box 6261, Alexandria, NSW 2015 Suite W3G, Building 2, Sydney Corporate Park 75 O'Riordan Street, Alexandria, NSW 2015

AGENDA

3 Approval of Proposed Amendments to the Company's Constitution (continued):

Resolution 1: Remove all reference to 'Foundation Member' from applicable areas within the Company's Constitution.

Resolution 2: Merge 'Single-State Banner Member' and 'Multi-State Banner Member' categories to one 'Retail Banner Group Member', defined as proposed.

Resolution 3: Change the name of the category 'Chain Store Member' to 'Chain Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.

Resolution 4: Change the name of the category 'Liquor Store Member' to 'Independent Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.

Resolution 5: Change the name of the category 'Digital and Online Member' to 'Online Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.

Resolution 6: Amend the definition of 'Corporate Member' as proposed.

Resolution 7: Amend the definition of 'Associate Member' as proposed.

Resolution 8: Amend 'Section 10.1 Number of Directors' as proposed.

Resolution 9: Amend 'Section 10.4 Ongoing Board Appointments' as proposed.

Resolution 10: Amend 'Section 10.5 Eligibility of Directors' as proposed.

Resolution 11: Amend 'Section 10.8 No alternate Directors' as proposed.

4 Re-appointment of SDJ Audit Pty Ltd as Auditor:

5.1 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

Resolution 12: That SDJ Audit Pty Ltd, whose appointment as auditor of the Company ceases in accordance with Section 327C(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), and being nominated and eligible for appointment, and who offers itself for re-appointment, be appointed as auditor of the Company.

OTHER BUSINESS

AOB & Close:

To discuss any other business which may lawfully be brought before the AGM.







E. info@retaildrinks.org.au

PO Box 6261, Alexandria, NSW 2015 Suite W3G, Building 2, Sydney Corporate Park 75 O'Riordan Street, Alexandria, NSW 2015

Voting Prior to AGM:

Members not able to attend the AGM, and who don't wish to appoint a proxy, but who wish to exercise their right to vote on applicable resolutions, may submit their vote to info@retaildrinks.org.au at least 48 hours prior to the AGM.

Appointment of Proxy:

In accordance with Clause 8.9.1 of the Company's Constitution, a member may appoint a proxy. The proxy does not need to be a member of the Company.

Note: if any proxies do not specify (a) the name of the proxy; and/or (b) how the proxy is to vote (i.e. the irrelevant option is not struck out), you expressly authorise the Chairman to exercise your proxy as he sees fit. Note that the Chairman intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of all resolutions on the agenda for the AGM.

A form of proxy document is attached to this Notice of AGM. Proxies must be completed, signed, and returned to the Company's registered office (below) at least 48 hours prior to the date of the AGM:

Retail Drinks Australia Limited Suite W3G, Building 2, 75 O'Riordan Street, Alexandria NSW 2015

If you need further information about this form or attendance at the AGM, please contact the Retail Drinks office on (P) 02 8335 3200 or (E) info@retaildrinks.org.au.

Dated: 23 October 2024

By Order of the Board

Gavin William Saunders Company Secretary

Sydney







P. 02 8335 3200

E. info@retaildrinks.org.au

PO Box 6261, Alexandria, NSW 2015 Suite W3G, Building 2, Sydney Corporate Park 75 O'Riordan Street, Alexandria, NSW 2015

PROXY FORM | FY24 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) RETAIL DRINKS AUSTRALIA LIMITED ACN 108 468 248 (COMPANY)

(member's full name)
, ann ainte
, appoints (member's company/store)
Date:
(proxy's full name)
As its representative or proxy or both to attend the FY24 AGM of the Members of the Company on 13 November 2024 on the member's behalf. The representative or proxy (strike through irrelevant option) has full power to vote in the name of the member and to exercise all powers and rights of the member at or in relation to the meeting; or is directed on the resolutions put before the meeting as follows:
Resolution 1: Remove all reference to 'Foundation Member' from applicable areas within the Company's Constitution.
Resolution 2: Merge 'Single-State Banner Member' and 'Multi-State Banner Member' categories to one 'Retail Banner Group Member', defined as proposed.
Resolution 3: Change the name of the category 'Chain Store Member' to 'Chain Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.
Resolution 4: Change the name of the category 'Liquor Store Member' to 'Independent Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.
Resolution 5: Change the name of the category 'Digital and Online Member' to 'Online Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.
Resolution 6: Amend the definition of 'Corporate Member' as proposed.
Resolution 7: Amend the definition of 'Associate Member' as proposed.
Resolution 8: Amend 'Section 10.1 Number of Directors' as proposed.
Resolution 9: Amend 'Section 10.4 Ongoing Board Appointments' as proposed.
Resolution 10: Amend 'Section 10.5 Eligibility of Directors' as proposed.
Resolution 11: Amend 'Section 10.8 No alternate Directors' as proposed.
Resolution 12: That SDJ Audit Pty Ltd, whose appointment as auditor of the Company ceases in accordance with Section 327C(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), and being nominated and eligible for appointment, and who offers itself for re-appointment, be appointed as auditor of the Company.
Signed by:Signature:(member's full name)
In the presence of:
Signed by:Signature:Signature:





RESOLUTIONS	CURRENT STATUS	PROPOSED CHANGES	RATIONALE
Resolution 1: Remove all reference to 'Foundation Member' from applicable areas within the Company's Constitution.	The term 'Foundation Member' is referenced in the following areas within the <u>Company's Constitution</u> : Definitions (page 1); Section 4.2.2 (page 4); Section 6.2.1 (page 6); Section 10.3 (page 14); Section 10.13.2 (page 17); and Schedule 1: Membership Categories.	Remove all reference to 'Foundation Member' from applicable areas within the Company's Constitution.	The existence of a 'Foundation Member' category was necessary at the time of the Company's formation, and until the inaugural AGM in 2019, however as the category is no longer active, reference to 'Foundation Member' can be removed.
Resolution 2: Merge 'Single-State Banner Member' and 'Multi-State Banner Member' categories to one 'Retail Banner Group Member', defined as proposed.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Single-State Banner Member Definition: A person who acts as a buying group for Liquor Stores located in only one Australian State or Territory, by providing services that include bulk purchasing, promotional programs and/or advertising collateral. Multi-State Banner Member Definition: A party who acts as a buying group for Liquor Stores that are located in more than one Australian State and Territory, by providing services that include bulk purchasing, promotional programs and/or advertising collateral.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Retail Banner Group Member Definition: A party that acts as a buying group for Independent Retailers located in one or more Australian State or Territory, by providing services that include bulk purchasing, promotional and/or advertising programs.	Firstly, the definition of the 'Single-State Banner Member' category is problematic and inconsistent, being the only category where the member is a 'person', as opposed to a 'party' (i.e. company). Further, since the Company's formation this category has never had more than 2 members, both of which loosely meet the definition, but principally should reside in another category. This amendment simplifies the categories, reducing ambiguity and confusion.
Resolution 3: Change the name of the category 'Chain Store Member' to 'Chain Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Chain Store Member Definition: A party that owns at least 100 Liquor Stores in total across 3 or more Australian States and Territories.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Chain Retailer Member Definition: A party that owns and operates at least 100 physical and/or online retail liquor stores in total across 3 or more Australian States and Territories.	Amending the category name to ensure that it is clearly understood as a 'retailer' category, and for consistency with other amendments. Also, amending the definition to recognise physical and/or online retail liquor stores.
Resolution 4: Change the name of the category 'Liquor Store Member' to 'Independent Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Liquor Store Member Definition: A party that owns at least 1 Liquor Store but does not satisfy the definition of a Chain Store Member.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Independent Retailer Member Definition: A party that owns and operates at least 1 physical retail liquor store and does not satisfy the definition of another Membership Category.	Amending the category name to ensure that it is clearly understood as a 'retailer' category, and for consistency with other amendments. Also, amending the definition to avoid confusion.





RESOLUTIONS	CURRENT STATUS	PROPOSED CHANGES	RATIONALE
Resolution 5: Change the name of the category 'Digital and Online Member' to 'Online Retailer Member' and amend the definition as proposed.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Digital and Online Member Definition: A party that supplies liquor via: (a) delivery services and/or; (b) online sales, and not via Liquor Stores.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Online Retailer Member Definition: A party that owns and operates at least 1 online-only retail liquor store and does not satisfy the definition of another Membership Category.	Amending the category name to ensure that it is clearly understood as a 'retailer' category, and for consistency with other amendments. Also, amending the definition to avoid confusion.
Resolution 6: Amend the definition of 'Corporate Member' as proposed.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Corporate Member Definition: A party that supplies beverages (alcohol or non-alcohol) to Liquor Stores but do not fall within any other Membership Category.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Corporate Member Definition: A party that supplies beverages, or services to physical and/or online retail liquor stores and does not satisfy the definition of another Membership Category.	Amending the definition to enable more than just beverage companies to become members in this category, and to ensure consistency with other amendments.
Resolution 7: Amend the definition of 'Associate Member' as proposed	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Associate Member Definition: A party that supplies goods or services (other than beverages) to Liquor Stores but do not fall within any other Membership Category.	Schedule 1: Membership Categories Associate Member Definition: A party that supplies beverages, or services to physical and/or online retail liquor stores, with an annual revenue of less than \$50 million, and does not satisfy the definition of another Membership Category.	The current definition is limited in that the wording states 'other than beverages', precluding smaller beverage companies from joining in this category. Amending the definition gives smaller beverage companies the ability to join in this non-voting category.
Resolution 8: Amend 'Section 10.1 Number of Directors' as proposed.	10.1 Number of Directors There must be a: 10.1.1 minimum of 3 Directors; and 10.1.2 a maximum of 12 Directors.	10.1 Number of Directors There must be a: 10.1.1 minimum of 1 Director per Membership Category entitled to vote; and 10.1.2 a maximum of 12 Directors.	There are no proposed changes to the total number of Directors, which will remain at maximum of 12. What this amendment does is require that there is always at least 1 Director from each category on the Board, which ensures that the Members in each category are fairly represented.





RESOLUTIONS	CURRENT STATUS	PROPOSED CHANGES	RATIONALE
Resolution 9: Amend 'Section 10.4 Ongoing Board Appointments' as proposed.	10.4.1 After the end of the Transitional Board Period, the Members of each Current Membership Category have the right to appoint 2 Directors to the Board. However, if at any time all Members are in one Membership Category, that Membership Category will have the right to appoint 3 Directors. 10.4.3 The tenure of Directors will be as follows: (a) for Directors appointed during the Transitional Board Period, until the Company's 2019 annual general meeting; and (b) for Directors elected at the Company's 2019 annual general meeting or any subsequent annual general meeting, at the second annual general meeting following their appointment. 10.4.4 After the Transitional Board Period, where there is a casual vacancy for a Director, the Members of the applicable Membership Category must vote for a replacement Director in accordance with the process specified by the Board.	 10.4.1 The Members of each current Membership Category have the right to appoint Directors to the Board as follows: - Chain Retailer – up to 3 Directors - Independent Retailer – up to 3 Directors - Retail Banner Group – up to 3 Directors - Online Retailer – 1 Director - Corporate – up to 2 Directors However, if at any time all Members are in one Membership Category, that Membership Category will have the right to appoint 3 Directors. 10.4.3 The tenure of Directors will be until the second annual general meeting following their appointment. 10.4.4 Where there is a casual vacancy for a Director, the Board will consider and if thought fit, either: (a) vote to approve the appointment of the replacement Director to fill the casual vacancy in the applicable Membership Category; or (b) invite Members of the applicable Membership Category to vote for a replacement Director in accordance with the process specified by the Board. 	 Number of Directors: To coincide with other proposed amendments (as per Resolutions 2 & 8), it is proposed to also change the number of board seats within the applicable 'retailer' Membership Categories, as justified below: Chain Retailer – increasing from 2 to 3 seats allows for new membership opportunities. Independent Retailer – increasing from 2 to 3 seats recalibrates the seats from merging the Single & Multi State Banner categories. Retail Banner Group – recalibrates the seats from merging the Single & Multi State Banner categories and aligns with changes to seats in both Chain Retailer and Independent Retailer categories. Increasing from 2 to 3 seats also provides consistency in the Retail Banner rationale. Online Retailer – reducing from 2 to 1 seat continues to recognise this as a stand-alone category but acknowledges that all other 'retailer' categories also do online. Corporate – no change to number of seats. These amendments do not change the total number of 'retailer' seats available, which remains at 10 of the maximum 12 seats. Tenure of Directors: Elections for Board seats take place every 2 years, meaning there's a regular and formal process for electing or reelecting from within each Membership Category. Each Director's tenure is for a maximum of 2 years, unless re-elected by Members within their respective Membership Category.





RESOLUTIONS	CURRENT STATUS	PROPOSED CHANGES	RATIONALE
Resolution 9: Amend 'Section 10.4 Ongoing Board Appointments' as proposed (continued).			Casual Vacancies: In most instances, a casual vacancy arises when a Director retires, changes roles, or leaves their company, meaning the Member should be able to nominate a successor to fill the casual vacancy until the next formal election, rather than having to conduct an election/vote amongst Members in the applicable Membership Category. In the unlikely event a casual vacancy arises due to the resignation/non-renewal of a Member Company; or a membership is terminated, the Board would have the option to invite Members in the applicable Membership Category to vote. This removes unnecessary administrative burden in the event of a casual vacancy arising. References to 'Transitional Board Period' relate to the 'Foundation Board' and can be removed.
Resolution 10: Amend 'Section 10.5 Eligibility of Directors' as proposed.	10.5 Eligibility of Directors 10.5.1 To be eligible to be a Director a person must: (a) be a Member in the appointing Current Membership Category (if the Member is a natural person); or (b) be the: (i) owner; (ii) chairperson; or (iii) chief executive officer, general manager or other similar senior executive, of a Member in the appointing Current Membership Category (if the Member is not a natural person), who has authority to make decisions on behalf of that Member.	 10.5 Eligibility of Directors 10.5.1 To be eligible to be a Director a person must: (a) be a Member in the appointing current Membership Category; and (b) be the owner, director, chairperson, managing director, chief executive officer, general manager, or equivalent senior executive, who has authority to make decisions on behalf of that Member. 	Amending this section removes the unnecessary language relating to a Member being a natural person, as Members are companies, not individuals. Additional eligibility requirements help ensure that Directors of the Company are the most senior representatives of each applicable Membership Category, demonstrating to stakeholders (members, industry, government and community) that the organisation has gravitas and is taken seriously by its members.





RESOLUTIONS	CURRENT STATUS	PROPOSED CHANGES	RATIONALE
Resolution 11: Amend 'Section 10.8 No alternate Directors' as proposed.	10.8 No alternate Directors Directors are not entitled to appoint an alternate.	10.8 Alternate Directors With the other Directors' approval, a Director may appoint an alternate to exercise some or all of the Director's powers for a specified period. 10.8.1 To be eligible to be an Alternate Director a person must: (a) be a Member in the appointing current Membership Category; and (b) be the owner, director, chairperson, managing director, chief executive officer, general manager, or other similar senior executive, who has the authority to make decisions on behalf of that Member.	This amendment builds on the importance of Resolution 10, and gives Directors flexibility and appropriate support, as well as a natural succession pathway for Alternate Directors. Alternate Directors will have some or all of the Director's powers, meaning that in the event a Director is unable to respond/action a request or attend a meeting, the alternate can act in the Director's stead, including voting where applicable, thus reducing risk of not having a quorum and matter for resolution being delayed. Note – Alternate Directors will be required to have a Director ID number and be lodged with ASIC.
		10.8.2 The appointing Director may terminate that alternate's appointment at any time. An appointment or its termination must be in writing, and a copy must be given to the Company.	
		10.8.3 The Directors may at any time suspend or remove an Alternate Director by resolution after giving the appointer reasonable notice in writing of their intention to do so.	

